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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

9 EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10
11 | BOBBY DARRELL JOHNSON; et al., No. 2:14-cv-01338-KIJM-EFB
12 Plaintiffs,
13 V. ORDER
14 | SHASTA COUNTY, a public entity, et al.
15 Defendants.
16
17 This matter is before the court tre motion by defendants Sutter County,
18 | Matthew Maples, James Casner, and Michael GwiriBufter defendants) to dismiss plaintiffs
19 | First Amended Complaint under Federal Rul€ofil Procedure 12(b)(6)(Defs.” Mot. to
20 | Dismiss, ECF No. 6.) Plaintiffs oppose thetimo (Pls.” Opp’n, ECF No. 9), and the Sutter
21 | defendants have replied (ECF No. 10). In suppbttieir opposition plaintiffs filed a request fqr
22 | judicial notice, including a declaration and éits. (ECF Nos. 9-1 through 9-7.) The Sutter
23 | defendants object and move to strike the retfeegudicial notice andhe declaration and the
24 | exhibits. (ECF No. 11.) The court need nalrads the Sutter defentta’ objection and motion
25 | to strike because the court does not rely enfaicts submitted in connection with plaintiffs’
26 | request for judicial notice. Finding the matseritable for disposition othe papers, the court
27 | submitted the motion without argument. As expéd below, the court GRANTS in part and
28 | DENIES in part defendants’ motion.
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l. ALLEGATIONS OF THE COMPLAINT

On June 4, 2014, plaintiffs filed a fistnended complaint (the Complaint) agai
defendants Shasta County, Cary Erickson, Féeemming, Ray Hughes, David Renfer, Kyle
Wallace, Eric Magrini, Gene Randal, Nickompson, Craig Tippings, Jesse Wells, Sutter
County, Matthew Maples, James Casner, and 8tlwinnup (defendants). (Pls.” First Am.
Compl., ECF No. 5 (“Compl.”).) The Complaintedes the following claimg1) violation of the
Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments under 42 U.$ 1983 against all indidual defendants;
(2) a claim undeMonell v. Department of Social Se&es of City of New York36 U.S. 658
(1978), against Shasta and Su@eunties; (3) violation of Califrnia Civil Code 8§ 52.1 against
all defendants; (4) negligence against all defendants; (5) assdulatery against all
defendants; (6) false arrestioprisonment against all defeaiats; and (7) violation of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and ¢hRehabilitation Act against Shasta and Sutter
Counties. $eegenerallyCompl.) All of the claims aresout of defendants’ execution of a
search warrant on plaintiffs’ residence.

Defendants Matthew Maples, Jan@assner, and Michael Gwinnup are law
enforcement officers employed by the Sutteufity Sheriff’s office. (Compl. {{ 19-21.)
Defendants Cary Erickson, Tom Flemming, RaygHes, Eric Magrini, Gene Randal, David
Renfer, Nick Thompson, Craig Tippings, and Kyle Wallace are law enforcement officers
employed by the Shasta County Sheriff's offickl. {{ 8—16.) Defendant Jesse Wells, M.D.,
“employed as a volunteer law enforcement offiaeat provider of in-fieldnedical services” for

the Shasta County Sheriff's officeld( 17.)

Plaintiffs Bobby Johnson, Sharon Johnson, Tanya Johnson, and Angela Johnson,

thirteen-year old minor, reside at 429Sundust Road, Redding, Californidd. @1 29, 33.) At
7:00 a.m. on August 13, 2013, defendants arrivediaattiffs’ residencein a convoy comprised
of military combat-style tactical transports and other vehicldsl” [ 29, 31.) “Defendants
wore masks, battle-dress uniforms, and edrassault rifles @hother long guns.” Iq. 1 31.)
Defendant Gwinnup and possibly other Sutter Cooffigers procured the warrant to search t

residence. I¢l. 1 30.) The warrant was issued b$wtter County Superior Court judgdd.
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“Defendants ordered [plaintiffs] to come out of their homed. { 32.) “Plaintiff
[Bobby Johnson] was the first to exit the housdd.)( Though he “was totally compliant,

unarmed, had committed no crime, and posed no immediate threat to anyone, . . . [d]efen

jants

held him at gunpoint and threatened to shoot hirtd’) (“When . . . [d]efendants stated that they

were going to handcuff [him], he told thenatthe could not move his arm behind his back
because of a very recent breast-cancer surgerjethatlarge, unhealed incision scar on his
chest.” (d.) Bobby Johnson “was shirtless, and hiserd surgical scarwere visible to
[d]efendants.” Id.) Defendants “repeatedly and forcefullyenched [his] arm behind his back
to handcuff him, . . . causing segeand painful injuries.” I.) Defendants forced Bobby
Johnson “to sit handcuffed on the grodada significant period of time.”1d.)

Plaintiff Tanya Johnson arieer daughter plaintiff Anda Johnson came out of th
house after Bobby Johnsond.(f 33.) They “were totallgompliant, and [d]efendants knew
[Angela Johnson] was obviously a childid.j Though Tanya and Angela Johnson “pos[ed]
threat to anyone and despiteithobeying all [d]efendants’ orders,” defendants “held them at
gunpoint.” (d.) Tanya Johnson “told [d]efendantstishe had recently undergone shoulder
surgery and pointed out her siz@ scars and deformity.”ld.  34.) Defendants “forcefully
wrenched [Tanya Johnson’s] arm behind her backiandcuff her, causing severe and painfu
injuries. (d.) Defendants “forced [her] to sit handi@d on the ground for a significant period
time.” (Id.) Later, “[d]efendants faefully yanked [her] to her feet by her handcuffs, causing
further severe and painful injuries.1d()

Plaintiff Sharon Johnson is Bobby Johnsowife and Tanya Johnson’s mother.
(Id. 1 35.) Bobby Johnson and Tanya Johnson irddrdefendants that Sharon Johnson “was
very ill, confined to a hostal bed, and physically unable to come outside of the houss)” (
Sharon Johnson “was unarmed and posed no threat to anythg.”Defendants pointed guns
at [Sharon Johnson], forced her to get out ofhospital bed, and orderéeér to let go of her
walker and put up her hands, despite heralw/physical illnessra disability.” (d.)

Defendants “raided [plaintiffs’] residena@d other buildings on their property,”

“damaged [plaintiffs’] personal property,hd “seized [Bobby Johnson’s] Bobcat machine an
3
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firearms, among other property.td( § 36.) Defendants interraga plaintiffs “and throughout
this incident, used profanity and other urfpssional language exgssing [d]efendants’
animosity toward [p]laintiffs.” Id.) Defendants “threatened tdlKiTanya Johnson’s] dog.”

(Id.) Bobby Johnson and Tanya Johnson remaineddudfed for thirty minutes or more, and

“[d]efendants remained at [p]laintiffs’ home and hdflaintiffs in custody for about four hours|.

(1d.)

Defendants’ actions included “drawing agxhibiting of their firearms, subjectin
[p]laintiffs to multiple gun points, handcuffingnd repeatedly shouting at [p]laintiffs, who had
committed no crime, were unarmed, and did not jposethreat to [d]efendants or others at an
time.” (Id. 1 37.) “[N]o criminal charges were @vfiled against any [p]laintiff.” 1¢l.)
“Plaintiffs have required medical care as a restildefendants’ actions.Id.) Bobby Johnson’s
physical injuries include “a traumatiematoma on his right chest wall.Id( 39(b).) Tanya
Johnson’s physical injuries include subluxed left shoulder.”Id. 1 39(c).)

I. STANDARD

Under Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal Ruté<Civil Procedure, a party may move {o

dismiss a complaint for “failure to state a odaipon which relief can be granted.” A court ma

dismiss “based on the lack of cognizable legalheo the absence of sufficient facts alleged

under a cognizable legal theoryBalistreri v. Pacifica Police Dep/©901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cirn.

1990).

Although a complaint need contain onlysiaort and plain statement of the clairn
showing that the pleader is entitled to relief,dFR. Civ. P. 8(a)(2), in order to survive a motic
to dismiss this short and plastatement “must contain sufficiefaictual matter . . . to ‘state a
claim to relief that is plausible on its face Ashcroft v. Igbal556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (quotir
Bell Atl. Corp. v. Twomb|y550 U.S. 544, 570 (2007)). A complaint must include something
more than “an unadorned, the-defendant-unlawfully-harmed-me accusation” or “labels an
conclusions’ or ‘a formulaic recitation dfe elements of a cause of actionld’ (quoting
Twombly 550 U.S. at 555). Determining whether a complaint will survive a motion to dism

for failure to state a claim is a “context-spectsk that requires theviewing court to draw on
4
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its judicial experience and common sensiel’at 679. Ultimately, theaquiry focuses on the
interplay between the factual allegations of theglaint and the dispositive issues of law in th
action. See Hishon v. King & Spalding67 U.S. 69, 73 (1984).

In making this context-specific evaluatidhis court must consie the complaint
in the light most favorable tive plaintiff and accept as trtiee factual allegations of the
complaint. Erickson v. Pardus551 U.S. 89, 93-94 (2007). This rulees not apply to “a legal
conclusion couched adactual allegation,”Papasan v. Allain478 U.S. 265, 286 (198&)uoted
in Twombly 550 U.S. at 555, nor to “allegations teanhtradict matters properly subject to
judicial notice” or to material attached toincorporated by reference into the complaint.
Sprewell v. Golden State Warrigi266 F.3d 979, 988—89 (9th Cir. 2001).

1. ANALYSIS

A. Fourth Amendment: Judicial Dedem in Obtaining a Search Warrant

Plaintiffs challenge the search warréimat was executed on their residence.
(Compl. 1 30, ECF No. 5.) Spedidilly, plaintiffs allege thathe search warrant was unlawful
and lacked probable cause because it was @ddased on false statements or misleading
omissions made by defendant Gwinnujal.)( The Sutter defendants argue this claim should
dismissed on two grounds (1) the allegationscarelusory and no actutcts are alleged, and
(2) plaintiffs have not establisti¢he false statements or omissioreye material to a finding of
probable cause. (ECF No. 6-1 at 5.)

A person who knowingly or with recklessstiegard for the truth includes materi
false statements or omits material facts iraHiavit submitted in support of a warrant
application may be liable under 8§ 1988 éoFourth Amendment violatiorButler v. Elle
281 F.3d 1014, 1024-26 (9th Cir. 2002). To stataianclor judicial deception and survive a
motion to dismiss, “a 8§ 1983 plaintiff must shtvat the investigator ‘made deliberately false
statements or recklessly disredgd the truth in the affidavit’ and that the falsifications were
‘material’ to the finding of probable causeGalbraith v. Cnty. of Santa Clay807 F.3d 1119,
1126 (9th Cir. 2002jquotingHervey v. Este$5 F.3d 784, 790 (9th Cir. 1995)). Facts pled (

“information and belief” are gficient as long as the othé&gbal-Twomblyrequirements are
5
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satisfied. See Hightower v. TiltgriNo. 08-1129, 2012 WL 1194720, at *3—4 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 10,

2012) (citingKarim-Panahi v. L.A. Police Dep'839 F.2d 621, 624 (9th Cir. 1988)).

In Galbraith, plaintiff brought a § 1983 acticaagainst the county and county
coroner for falsifying an autopsy report, leadiaglaintiff’s false arest and prosecution for
murder. 307 F.3d at 1119. Plaintiff’'s allegattbat the coroner’s “lies proximately caused
[plaintiff's] arrest and prosecution for murdevas sufficient to establish that the coroner’s
reckless disregard for the truth and lies waederial to the finding of probable caudd. at

1127.

Here, plaintiffs have alleged defendamitered and searched their home “despjte

knowing that none of . . . [plaintiffs] were sesped of any crime, and despite not having any

arrest warrants for any of . . . [plaintiffs].” (Cpm¢{ 29.) Plaintiffs further allege on informatipn

and belief that defendant Gwinnup and possibther Sutter County law enforcement officers

procured the search warrang%ed on deliberate and/or reckless false statements and/or

misleading omissions made by [d]efendant [Gwinnum,affiant, to the judicial officer . . . wha

issued the warrant.”Id. 1 30.)
Although plaintiffs have sufficientlglleged the first prong required Balbraith,

that defendant Gwinnup made deliberately falsestants or recklessly disregarded the truth

the affidavit, they have not sufficiently allegee tlalsifications were “material” to the finding g

probable causeSee307 F.3d at 1126. Accordingly, the Suttlefendants’ motion to dismiss
plaintiff's claim for violation of their Fourtimendment rights under a theory of judicial

deception is GRANTED with leawe amend if plaintiffs can do so consonant with Rule 11.

B. Federal and State Law Claims Agaibefendants Casner, Maples, and Gwinnup

The Sutter defendants assert plaintifisims under federal law, 42 U.S.C. § 19

and state law, assault, false arrest, negtigeand Civil Code § 52.1, are overly broad because

they generally refer to all defendants having embeld themselves in the same manner. (ECF

No. 6-1 at 5.) As aresult, the Sutter defenidargue all claims against defendants Casner,

n

—
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Maples, and Gwinnup should be dismissdd.) (Plaintiffs counter each defendant is liable under

i




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N N N DN DN NN DN R P R R R R R R R R
® N o O~ W N P O © 0N O 0NN W N B o

8 1983 as an integral participdatthe alleged unreasonable seanl seizure and collective us
of force. (ECF No. 9 at 8.)

To state a § 1983 claim, agpitiff must allege (1) theiolation of a right secured
by the Constitution and laws of the United States, and (2) the person who committed the 3
deprivation was acting undeolor of state lawWest v. Atkins487 U.S. 42, 48 (1988). An
officer may be liable for the conduct of others vehke or she has been an “integral participar
in the alleged constitutional violatioBlankenhorn v. City of Orangd85 F.3d 463, 481 n.12

(9th Cir. 2007). “[l]ntegral participation’ doe®t require that each officer’s actions themsel\

rise to the level of aonstitutional violation,’Boyd v. Benton Count®374 F.3d 773, 780 (9th Cir.

2004), “[b]ut it does require some fundamentaolvement in the conduct that allegedly caus
the violation,”Blankenhorn485 F.3d at 481 n.12. An officer who provides armed backup o
who participated in a ple action with knowledge that a patiar form of force would be used
but without objecting may bl@&able under the doctrine daitegral participationBoyd 374 F.3d a
780(citing James ex rel. James v. Sad09 F.2d 834, 837 (5th Cir. 1990) avidlear v.
Spears862 F.3d 1177, 1186 (5th Cir. 1989)).

The Sutter defendants argue each officer may only be liable for his own con
citing Chuman v. Wright76 F.3d 292, 295 (9th Cir. 1996). @thuman the court rejected a jury
instruction that allowed the jury to “lump all the defendants togetattrer than require it to bas
each individual’s liability on his own conductld. The lower court had instructed the jury
“when the deprivation of rights the result of a ‘team effort’ all members of the ‘team’ may b
held liable.” Id. at 294. The&Chumancourt found the “team effort” instruction deviated from t
“integral participation” standar@xpanding it “to include liabilitypased on team effort alone.”
Id. at 295. Chumandid not reject but approved of thaagral participation standard and
therefore does not support tBatter defendants’ argumerseed.

Here, plaintiffs have allegethat each defendant partiatpd in the raid of their

be

llegec

lt”

es

9%
o

-

juct,

15

home, held them at gunpoint,rgzuffed plaintiffs Bobby Johnson and Tanya Johnson for thirty

minutes or more and held plaintiffs in custddyfour hours. (Complf 29, 31-37.) Construg

in the light most favorable tolaintiffs, the allegations of pintiffs’ amended complaint with
7
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respect to their § 1983 claim ardfsaient to suggest each defendavas an integral participant
in the alleged violation. Accomply, the Sutter defendants’ ien to dismiss plaintiffs’ § 1983
claim against defendants Casridgples, and Gwinnup is DENIED.

The Sutter defendants have cited ntharity to support their argument that
plaintiffs’ state law claims should also be diseed because they refer to all defendants havir
conducted themselves in the same manner. rAsudt, the Sutter defendants’ motion to dismis
plaintiffs’ state law claim®n this ground also is DENIED.

C. ADA and Rehabilitation Act

The Sutter defendants argue plaintiffidim for violations of the ADA and § 504
of the Rehabilitation Act cannot proceed becdd¥¢here was no arrest (ECF No. 10 at 7), an
(2) the physical limitations of plaintiffs Bobby Johnson, Sharon Johnson, and Tanya Johns
not disabilities because they do not substantiadit major life activities (ECF No. 6-1 at 7).

1. Arrest

Title 1l of the ADA provides'no qualified individual witha disability shall, by
reason of such disabilitype excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the
services, programs, or activitiesa public entity, or be subjtsz to discrimination by any such
entity.” 42 U.S.C. § 12132. I8heehan v. City and County of San Francige3 F.3d 1211,
1232 (9th Cir. 2014), the Ninth Circuit ruled thla¢ ADA applies to arrests. In doing so, the
court noted “that exigercircumstances inform the reasoledess analysis under the ADA, jus
as they inform the distinceasonableness standard urtdie Fourth Amendment.Id. The
Sheehartourt recognized two types of ADA clain(g) “wrongful arrest, where police wrongly
arrest someone with a disability because they nmisper the effects of thaisability as criminal
activity;” and (2) “reasnable accommodation, where, altgbipolice properly investigate and
arrest a person with a disability for a crime uated to that disabilt they fail to reasonably
accommodate the person’s disability in the coofdée investigation or arrest, causing the
person to suffer greater injury or indignitythat process thamther arrestees.ld. Plaintiffs
have asserted the second type of claim here.

I

19

bS

on are




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N N N DN DN NN DN R P R R R R R R R R
® N o O~ W N P O © 0N O 0NN W N B o

Sutter defendants argue theras no arrest, and theref@beehardoes not apply
(ECF No. 10 at 7), but do not cite any case lasugport this argument. Plaintiffs cite severa
cases indicating the determination whether a detefecomes an arrest is fact specific, base
a “totality of the circumstances.See Washington v. Lambed8 F.3d 1181, 1185 (9th Cir. 199
(“In looking at the totality othe circumstances, we consid@th the intrusiveness of the stop,
i.e., the aggressiveness of the police methodfhanwdmuch the plaintiff's liberty was restricted
and the justification for the use of such tacties, whether the officer haifficient basis to fea
for his safety to warrant the intrusiveness of the action taken.”) (internal citation omitted).
Plaintiffs claim the use of handcuffs is an imjpot factor in determing whether an arrest
occurred, citingJnited States v. Del Viz618 F.2d 821, 825 (9th Cir. 1990) addited States v.
Bautistg 684 F.2d 1286, 1289 (9th Cir. 1982) (harifiog “substantially aggravates the
intrusiveness of an otherwise routine investitgy detention and isot part of a typicalerry
stop”). See also Washingtp@8 F.3d at 1188 (“if the police dratheir guns it greatly increases
the seriousness of the stop”).

Here, plaintiffs have alleged they reeunlawfully arrested. (Compl. {1 71-74.)
They also allege that they veeheld at gunpoint, handcuffed, ameld in custody for four hours.
(Id. 111 32, 33, 36.) Plaintiffs’ ali@tions that they we arrested are sutfent to survive a
motion to dismiss.

2. Disability

To state a claim for failure to accommutelander Title Il of the ADA, a plaintiff
must show he or she: (1) is extlividual with a disability; (2) i®therwise qualified to participat
in or receive the benefit of a public entity’s services, programs, or activities; (3) was either
excluded from participation in or denied the bé&sedf the public entity’services, programs or
activities or was otherwise discriminated agaiby the public entity; and (4) was excluded,
denied benefits, or discriminated agaimg reason of his or her disabilittheehan743 F.3d at

1232. Similarly, to state a claim undee Rehabilitation Act, a plaifitimust allege “1) he is an

d on

O)
~—~

D

individual with a disability; (2) he is otherwisgialified to receive the benefit; (3) he was denigd

the benefits of the program solely by reason sfdisability; and (4) the program receives fedd
9

bral




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N N N DN DN NN DN R P R R R R R R R R
® N o O~ W N P O © 0N O 0NN W N B o

financial assistance.O’Guinn v. Lovelock Corr. Ctr502 F.3d 1056, 1060 (9th Cir. 2007)
(quotingDuvall v. Cnty. of Kitsap260 F.3d 1124, 1135 (9th Cir. 2QD1The Ninth Circuit has
held “[t]here is no significant difference in analysis of tiglts and obligations created by the
ADA and the Rehabilitation Act.’Zukle v. Regents of Univ. of Gal66 F.3d 1041, 1045 n.11
(9th Cir. 1999)see Armstrong v. Wilspti24 F.3d 1019, 1023 (9th Cir. 1997) (noting “Congré
has directed that the ADA and R construed consistently”). @tefore, this court’'s analysis
under the ADA below also applies to plaifisi claims under the Rehabilitation Act.

The Sutter defendants contend the ptatdimitations of plaintiffs Bobby
Johnson, Sharon Johnson, and Tanya Johnson do not constitute disabilities under prong ]
SheehamndO’Guinn because they do not substantially limit major life activities. (ECF No.
at7.)

The ADA defines “disability” as a “physal or mental impairment that
substantially limits one or more of the majoeldctivities of such individual.” 42 U.S.C.
812102(1)(A). Major life activitie include, but are not limited toaring for oneself, performing
manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, shegpvalking, standindijfting, bending, speaking,
breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, tmgkicommunicating, and working.” 42 U.S.C.
8§ 12102(2)(A). IReese v. Barton Healthcare Syste®@§ F. Supp. 2d 1254, 1261 (E.D. Cal.
Dec. 15, 2008), the court held that plaintiff's ghéions were sufficient tetate an ADA claim at
the pleading stage. Tlreeselaintiff alleged she had a sHdar injury that rendered her
permanently disabled, she was substantially limited in the major life activities of lifting, sle¢
and reaching, among others, and her doctor wrata hete stating her sability limited her
work responsibility of conducting echo exanid. The court ruled these allegations were
“sufficient to put defendant on no#i®f plaintiff's disability.” Id. See also Benner v. Createc
Corp., No.08-40, 2008 WL 2437726, at *3 (E.D. Tenn. June 13, 2008) (holding plaintiff's
allegations that she was disabled becauserdfeast cancer and defentéred her because of
her disability sufficient to whstand motion to dismiss).
i
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Here, plaintiffs have alleged Sutteowhty failed to reasonably accommodate the

disabilities of Bobby Johnson, Sharon Johnson, and Tanya Johnson including:

[Bobby Johnson’s] breast cancerdapost surgical sequalae with
significant limitations in the abtly to move his arms and upper
torso, [Sharon Johnson’s] late stage breast cancer, with significant
limitations in the ability to moveyalk, or stand without assistance,
and [Tanya Johnson’s] anterior gtdtumeral instability of her left
shoulder and post-surgical sequaleigh significant limitations in

the ability to move her arms and upper torso, . . ..

(Compl. 1 85.)
With respect to Bobby Johnson inrfpeular, plaintiffs have alleged:

When the [d]efendants stated that they were going to handcuff
[him], he told them that he calihot move his arm behind his back
because of a very recent breastemnsurgery that left a large,
unhealed incision scar on his chgBobby Johnson] was shirtless,
and his recent surgical scars revevisible to [d]efendants.
Nevertheless, [d]efendants subjected [Bobby Johnson] to a high
level of force when they repeatedly and forcefully wrenched [his]
arm behind his back to handctiin despite his known disability—
causing severe and painful injuries. Defendants then forced [Bobby
Johnson] to sit handcuffed on the ground for a significant period of
time.

(Id. 1 32.)
Plaintiffs have alleged Bobby and Tarja@hnson informed defendants that Shgron

Johnson

was very ill, confined to a ho#al bed, and physically unable to
come outside of the house. [She] was unarmed and posed no threat
to anyone. Defendants pointed gai$Sharon Johnson], forced her
to get out of her hospital bedna ordered her to let go of her
walker and put up her hands,sgée her obvious physical illness
and disability.

(Id. § 35.)

With respect to Tanya Johnson, plaintiffs have alleged:

[Tanya Johnson] told [d]efendanthat she had recently undergone
shoulder surgery and pointed out bargical scars and deformity to
[d]efendants. Nevertheless, [d]efamis forcefully wrenched [her]
arm behind her back, causing seveand painful injuries, to
handcuff her. Once handcuffedd]efendants forced [Tanya
Johnson] to sit handcuffed on the ground for a significant period of
time; later, [d]efendants forcdfy yanked [Tanya Johnson] to her
feet by her handcuffs, causing funttsevere and painful injuries.

N N
o

(Id. 7 34.)
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Based on these allegationsaiptiffs have alleged impanents within the meanin
of the ADA sufficient “to put defendant[s] on tice of plaintiff[s’] disabilit[lies].” See Rees&06
F. Supp. 2d at 1261. The Sutter defendants’ matiahsmiss plaintiffSADA and Rehabilitation
Act claims is DENIED.

D. Monell Claims

The Sutter defendants move to dismiss plaintifenell claims on the ground th
plaintiffs have failed to suffiently allege facts of an undenhg constitutional violation. (ECF
No. 6-1 at 8.) The Sutter defendants alsaclpliaintiffs do not adequately allege express
unconstitutional policies.Id.)

Municipalities may be held liable &sersons” under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, but not
the unconstitutional acts of th@mployees based solely onespondeat superior theorilonell,
436 U.S. at 691. Rather, a plaintiff seekingmpose liability on a mueipality under § 1983 is
required “to identify a municipal ‘policy’ or ‘custom’ that caad the plaintiff's injury.” Bd. of
Cnty. Comm’rs v. Browrb20 U.S. 397, 403 (1997) (citiddonell, 436 U.S. at 6942embaur v.
Cincinnati 475 U.S. 469, 480-81 (1986); a@dy of Canton v. Harris489 U.S. 378, 389
(1989)).

To sufficiently plead &onell claim and withstand a Rule 12(b)(6) motion to
dismiss, allegations in a complaint “may not siymecite the elementsf a cause of action, but
must contain sufficient allegatio$ underlying facts to giv&ir notice and to enable the
opposing party to defend itself effectivelyRE ex rel. Hernandez v. Cnty. of Tula666 F.3d
631, 637 (9th Cir. 2012) (quotirtgtarr v. Baca652 F.3d 1202, 1216 (9th Cir. 2011)).Monell
claim may be stated under three theories whicipal liability: (1) whenofficial policies or
established customs inflict a caimgtional injury; (2) when omissions or failures to act amoun
a local government policy of deliberate indifferetceonstitutional rightsor (3) when a local
government official with final policy-making auarity ratifies a subordinate’s unconstitutional
conduct. Clouthier v. Cnty. of Contra Cost&891 F.3d 1232, 1249-50 (9th Cir. 2010).

i
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Plaintiffs contend they have alleged factstate claims under all three theories
(ECF No. 9 at 14.) The court addresses theaeffcy of the allegatns supporting each theory
in turn.

1. Official Policy or Custom

A plaintiff may establisimunicipal liability by demonstrating “the constitutiona
tort was the result of a ‘longstding practice or custom whiclomstitutes the standard operatin
procedure of the local government entityPtice v. Sery513 F.3d 962, 966 (9th Cir. 2008)
(quotingUlrich v. City & Cnty. of S.F.308 F.3d 968, 984-85 (9th Cir. 2002)). To establish
liability for governmental entitiesnder this theory, a @intiff must show (1 that the plaintiff
“possessed a constitutional rightwathich [he or she] was deprive@) that the municipality had
a policy; (3) that this policy amounts to deliterandifference to the plintiff’'s constitutional
right; and, (4) that the policy is the movingde behind the constiional violation.” Plumeau v.
Sch. Dist. No. 40 Cnty. of Yamhill30 F.3d 432, 438 (9th Cir. 1997) (internal quotation mark
omitted).

Defendants argue plaintiffs have ntiéged express unconstitutional policies af
instead their allegations “appearbe a hodge-podge of boilerfddanguage that must be
discounted.” (ECF No. 6-1 at 9.)

Plaintiffs have allegedefendant Sutter County dh&the following customs,

policies, practices, and/or procedures . .. "

a. To use or tolerate the useefcessive and/or unjustified force,
including pointing guns during the esution of search warrants and
other at other timesithout justification;

b. To unlawfully arrest individda without probhle cause or
justification during the exetion of search warrants;

c. To fail to use appropriateand generally accepted law
enforcement procedures in hamgjiinjured and disabled persons;

d. To cover-up violations of constitutional rights by any or all of the
following:

i. by failing to properly investigate and/or evaluate
complaints or incidents of egssive and unreasonable force,
unlawful seizures, and/or handling of emotionally disturbed
persons;

13
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il. by ignoring and/or failingto properly and adequately
investigate and disciplineunconstitutional or unlawful
police activity; and

iii. by allowing, tolerating, and/or encouraging police
officers to: fail to file complete and accurate police reports;
file false police reports; make false statements; intimidate,
bias and/or “coach” witnesses to give false information
and/or to attempt to bolsteffioers’ stories; and/or obstruct
or interfere with investigions of unconstitutional or
unlawful police conduct, by withholding and/or concealing
material information;

e. To allow, tolerate, and/or emurage a “code of silence” among

law enforcement officers and paiclepartment personnel, whereby

an officer or member of the department does not provide adverse
information against a fellow officear member of the department;

g. To use or tolerate inadequaleficient, and improper procedures
for handling, investigating, and viewing complaints of officer
misconduct made under California Government Code 8§ 910 et seq.

(Compl. 1 48.)

Plaintiffs have also alleged the other elementsMbaell claim based on an
official policy or custom: they have afjed a violation of aanstitutional righti@. at 10), they
have alleged defendant Sutter County “failed to properly . . . monitor, supervise, evaluate,
investigate, and discipline [d]efendants, wittilakrate indifference to [p]laintiffs’ constitutiona
rights” (id. 149); and they have alleged defendautter County’s customs and policies “were
moving force and/or proximate cause of” the violations of plaintiffs’ constitutional rights (
1 51).

Plaintiffs’ allegations are sufficient to stat®danell claim on the basis of official
policy or custom. These allegatiogise Sutter County fair notice enable it to defend itself in
this matter.

2. Omissions or Failures Establishing Deliberate Indifference

A municipality’s failure to train itpolice officers may amount to a policy of
deliberate indifferenceSee Price513 F.3d at 973. To state a cldonfailure to train, a plaintif
must show (1) “the existing training program” isdequate “in relation tthe tasks the particula

officers must perform”; (2) the officials havedredeliberately indiffergt “to the rights of
14
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persons with whom the police conmto contact”; and (3) the inaduacy of the training “actual

caused the deprivation of thibegied constitutional right."Merritt v. Cnty. of L.A875 F.2d 765,

770 (9th Cir. 1989) (internal citations and quotation marks omitted).

institute, require, and enforpeoper and adequate training, siyp&on, policies, and procedure

In the instant matter, plaintiffs haaleged defendant Sett County “fail[ed]to

.. . when the need for such training, sup@owispolicies, and procedures [was] obvious.”

(Compl. 1 48(f).) As noted above, plaintiffs halkeged Sutter County fadeo train its officers

concerning the following customs or policies:

(Id. 7 48.)
i

a. To use or tolerate the useefcessive and/or unjustified force,
including pointing guns during the esution of search warrants and
other at other timesithout justification;

b. To unlawfully arrest individda without probhale cause or
justification during the exetion of search warrants;

c. To fail to use appropriateand generally accepted law
enforcement procedures in hamgjiinjured and disabled persons;

d. To cover-up violations of constitutional rights by any or all of the
following:

i. by failing to properly investigate and/or evaluate
complaints or incidents of egssive and unreasonable force,
unlawful seizures, and/or handling of emotionally disturbed
persons;

il. by ignoring and/or failingto properly and adequately
investigate and disciplineunconstitutional or unlawful
police activity; and

iii. by allowing, tolerating, and/or encouraging police
officers to: fail to file complete and accurate police reports;
file false police reports; make false statements; intimidate,
bias and/or “coach” witnesses to give false information
and/or to attempt to bolsteffioers’ stories; and/or obstruct
or interfere with investigions of unconstitutional or
unlawful police conduct, by vhholding and/or concealing
material information;

e. To allow, tolerate, and/or emurage a “code of silence” among
law enforcement officers and paiclepartment personnel, whereby
an officer or member of the department does not provide adverse
information against a fellow officear member of the department][.]

15
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Plaintiffs have further alleged defend&utter County “failed to properly hire,
train, instruct, monitor, supervise, evaluatwestigate, and discipline [d]efendants, with
deliberate indifference to [p]latiffs’ constitutional rights.” [d. § 49.) Plaintiffs have also
alleged this failure to train was “a moving fomed/or proximate cause of the deprivations of
[p]laintiffs’ . . . rights in vplation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.”Id. 1 51.)

The court finds plaintiffs’ allegationsesufficient to stata claim for municipal
liability based on failure to train amdthstand a motion to dismiss.

3. Ratification

A plaintiff may claimMonell liability where an “official with final policy-making
authority ratifie[s] a subordinate’s unconstitutal decision or action and the basis for it.”
Gillette v. Delmore979 F.2d 1342, 1346-47 (9th Cir. 1992). Aipomaker’s “knowledge of an
unconstitutional act does not, by ifseonstitute ratification.”Christie v. lopa176 F.3d 1231,
1239 (9th Cir. 1999). “[A] policymaker’'s merefusal to overrule a subdinate’s completed act
does not constitute approvalld. Rather, ratification requires the authorized policymaker to
make a “conscious, affirmative choiceGillette, 979 F.2d at 1347. Ratification “and thus the
existence of ae factopolicy or custom, can be shown by a municipality’s post-event condu
including its conduct in an ingédgation of the incident.’'Dorger v. City of NapaNo. 12-440,
2012 WL 3791447, at *5 (N.D. Cal. Aug. 31, 2012) (citlhgnry v. Cnty. of Shasta32 F.3d
512, 518 (9th Cir. 1997))See Christiel76 F.3d at 1240 (finding failute discipline along with
after-the-fact conduct indicating policymakeregd with subordinate’s conduct sufficient to
show ratification). “Ordinarily, ratiiation is a question for the juryld. at 1238-39.

Here, plaintiffs have alleged the following:

the details of this indent have been reveal to the authorized

policy makers within [Sutter Cowlt and [p]laintiffs are further

informed and believe, and thereumlege, that such policy makers
have direct knowledge dhe fact of this inident. Notwithstanding

this knowledge, the authorizegolicy makers within [Sutter

County] have approved of themduct of [d]efendants, and have
made a deliberate choice to demse the decisions of those
[d]efendants and the basis fdrose decisions. By doing so, the
authorized policy makers withjisutter County] have shown

i
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affirmative agreement with eadhdividual [d]efendant officer's
actions, and have ratified the unconstitutional acts of the individual
[d]efendant officers.

(Compl. 1 50.)

These allegations are sufficient to staMamell claim against defendant Sutter
County on the basis of ratification. The Suttefendants’ motion tdismiss plaintiffs’Monell
claims is DENIED.

In addition, the court takes accountloé “Notice of Supplemental Authority”
filed by plaintiffs on November 12014. (ECF No. 15.) In that filg, plaintiffs cite to a recent
Supreme Court casdphnson v. City of Shelby, Mississippi U.S. __, 135 S. Ct. 346 (2014),
support their position that in civil rights casesurts apply the usual pleading requirements.
(ECF No. 15 at 2.) This coustreasoning in this order is in conformance with that decist@®
Johnson 135 S. Ct. at 347 (in a constitutional claagainst a city, the plaintiffs “[h]aving
informed the city of the factual basis for their complaint, [] were required to do no more to
off threshold dismissal for want of adlequate statement of their claim.”).

E. DeclaratonRelief

Although the Sutter defendants seek to dssmvhat they refer to as “[p]laintiffs’
request for declaratory relief,” the complagioes not request declaratory relieheéECF No. 6-
1 at 9; Compl. at 21-22.) Plaintiffs respondfdke Sutter defendants had challenged their
request for injunctive relief, and contend theywe alleged policies and practices by Sutter
County sufficient to survive a motion to dismise thjunctive relief clan. (Opp’n at 18-19.)

It is premature at the pleading stag eliminate a potential remedy should
plaintiffs prevail inthis litigation. See Howard v. City of Vallejdlo. 13-1439, 2013 WL
6070494, at *7 (E.D. Cal. Nov. 13, 2013) (“plaintiffsagch for injunctive relieimust be resolvec
on an evidentiary record and raitthe pleading stage” (citir@ity of L.A. v. Lyons461 U.S. 95,
103, 105, 111 (1982Hodgers—Durgin v. de la Vind99 F.3d 1037, 1040-41 (9th Cir. 1999);
andLaDuke v. Nelsarv62 F.2d 1318 (9th Cir. 198Fodriguez v. Cal. Highway Patrol
89 F. Supp. 2d 1131, 1142 (N.D. Cal. 2000) (denying motion to dismiss claims for injuncti

declaratory relief, noting the “concerns raiseddjgfendants are better addressed after there
17
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been at least some developrmehthe factual record”))).
Accordingly, the Sutter defendants’ tiom to dismiss plaintiffs’ request for
declaratory relief is DENIED.
F. California Civil Code § 52.1

1. Conduct Involving Intimidation, Threats, Coercion

The Sutter defendants claim plaintiffs miat allege in other than a conclusory

manner that defendants’ conduct involved intimilatithreats, or coercion, and as a result, thieir

claim under California Civil Code § 52.1, also knmoas the Bane Act, should be dismissed.
(ECF No. 6-1 at 10.)

Section 52.1 of the CaliforaiCivil Code authorizesidividual civil actions for
damages and injunctive relief by individuals whtes#eral or state rights have been interfered
with by threats, intimidatiomr coercion. Cal. Civ. Code 8 52.1(b). Section 52.1 “does not
extend to all ordinary tort actiom®cause its provisions are ited to threats, intimidation, or
coercion that interferes with amwstitutional or statutory right.¥/enegas v. Cnty. of L.A2 Cal.
4th 820, 843 (2004). I8hoyoye v. County of Los Angel283 Cal. App. 4th 947 (2012), the
state appellate court held that § 52.1 did notyafiph claim brought by plaintiff who had been

over-detained in a county jail asesult of a clericalor. The court held that § 52.1 was meant

“to address interference witlostitutional rightsnvolving more egregious conduct than mere
negligence.”ld. at 958. Where the conduct is intentiondistrict courts have hel8hoyoyeloes
not apply. See M.H. v. Cnty. of Alameddo. 11-02868, 2013 WL 1701591, at *7 (N.D. Cal.
Apr. 18, 2013) (noting “the relevant distirai for purposes of the Bane Act is between
intentional and unintentional conduct, and Shoyeyeapplies only when the conduct is
unintentional”).

“Where Fourth Amendment unreasonad#ézure or excessive force claims are
raised and intentional conduct isisdue, there is no need for aipliff to allege a showing of
coercion independent from the coercion inhére the seizure or use of forceDillman v.
Tuolumne CntyNo. 13-00404, 2013 WL 1907379, at *21 (E.D. Cal. May 7, 208&e also

Rodriguez v. City of ModestNo. 10-01370, 2013 WL 6415620, at *13 (E.D. Cal. Dec. 9, 20
18
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(“A plaintiff bringing a Bane Act excessive force [claim] neadt allege a showing of coercion

independent from the coercianthe use of force.”).

Here, plaintiffs’ Fourth Amendment claims of excessive force and unreasong

search and seizure are sufficient to allegentional conduct(Compl. at 6-10 &  55.)

Plaintiffs have also alleged “[d]efendantshaited [p]laintiffs’ rights by the following conduct

constituting threats, timidation, or coercion:”

(Id. 7 56.)

dismiss.

a. Unlawfully searching and seizifjgjlaintiffs and their residence;

b. Pointing guns at each [p]laintiff in the absence of any threat or
justification whatsoever;

c. Threatening to kill [p]laintiffs’ family dog (chihuahua);

d. Conduct specifically defined asercive in Civ. Code § 52.1(j),

i.e., speech that “threatens violence against a specific person ... and
the person ... against whom thedat is directed reasonably fears
that, because of the speech, violence will be committed against
them or their property and thtite person threatening violence had
the apparent ability to carry otlte threat,” to wit: threatening to
shoot [p]laintiffs and family members while pointing guns at them,
and causing [p]laintiffs to fear for their lives and the lives of their
family members;

e. arresting [p]laintiffs withouprobable cause, including forcefully
handcuffing [p]laintiffs causinginjuries and forcing Sharon
Johnson from her hospital bed;

f. continuing [p]laintiffs’ arrst and custody after any probable
cause that [d]efendants may have erroneously believed existed to
justify [p]laintiffs’ arrest had erodk such that the officers’ conduct
became intentionally coercive and wrongful;

g. violating [p]laintiff's rights to be free from unlawful seizures
under Cal. Const. Art. 1, Se&3, by both wrongful arrest and
excessive force.

Plaintiffs have sufficiently statedBane Act claim to withstand a motion to

2. California Constitution, Article I, Section 13

The Sutter defendants also move to disipiasitiffs’ Bane Act claim to the extef

it is based on Article |, section 13 of theli@ania Constitution. The Sutter defendants conter

that because Article I, seati 13 has not been recognizedfford an action for damages,

19
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plaintiffs may not seek damagleg way of Civil Code § 52.1. (ECRo. 6-1 at 10.) In support ¢
this argument, the Sutter defendants relyCag of Simi Valley v. Superior Cout11 Cal. App.
4th 1077 (2003).

In Simi Valley the California Court of Appedleld that because there was “no
conduct specified which constitutes a statestitutional violation, there is no conduct upon
which to base a claim for liability under 52.1id. at 1085. UnlikeSimi Valley plaintiffs here

have alleged conduct that cangdes a violation of Article Isection 13 of the California

Constitution. Specifically, plaintiffs have allegedch defendant violated their rights “to be fre

from unlawful and unreasonable seizure of opeltson, including the right to be free from

unreasonable or excessive force, as secureceb@dhfornia Constitution, Article 1, Section 13.

(Compl. 1 55(d) & at 6-9.5ee, e.gVenegas v. Cnty. of L,AL53 Cal. App. 4th 1230, 1232
(2007) (declining to dismiss plaintiffs’ sectio@.% claims against two defendants for violation
of their rights under the Fourth Amendmentarticle I, section 13 of the California

Constitution). Section 13 in fact provides “tight of the people to be secure in their person

—
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houses, papers, and effects against unreasonahleeseénd searches may not be violated; and a

warrant may not issue except omipable cause, supported by oatraffirmation, particularly
describing the place to be searched and the personbkiags to be seized.Cal. Const. art. |,
§ 13.

Accordingly, the court DENIES the Sutter defendants’ motion to dismiss
plaintiffs’ claims under California Civil Code § 52.1.

G. Negligence
1. Cognizabl®uty

The Sutter defendants argue that plésitnegligence claim should be dismisse
for failure to allege a cognizable duty eavto plaintiffs. (ECF No. 6-1 at 11.)

To state a claim for negligence under Gathia law, plaintiffs must sufficiently
allege (1) a legal duty to use dcare; (2) breach of such leghlty; and (3) the breach was a
proximate or legal cause of the resulting injubadd v. County of San Matet? Cal. 4th 1077,

1101 (2004). A duty to a plaintiff is an esseintii@ment which “may be imposed by law, be
20
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assumed by the defendant, or exisvisiue of a special relationshipPotter v. Firestone Tir&
Rubber Cq.6 Cal. 4th 965, 985 (1993).

Under California law, police officers haaeduty not to use excessive forcgee
Munoz v. Union City120 Cal. App. 4th 1077, 1101 (2004¢dognizing “a duty on the part of
police officers to use reasonable care in degdo use and in fact ing deadly force”).See also
Hayes v. Cnty. of San Diege/ Cal. 4th 622, 629 (2013) (“Thesurt has long recognized that
peace officers have a duty to act reasonably when using deadly foDeknign, 2013 WL
1907379, at *23 (“[I]t is well estalshed that police officers have a duty not to use excessive
force.”). State courts have also upheld neglie claims against police officers in connection
with unlawful detentions and improper searchBse Venegad53 Cal. App. 4th at 1249-52.

2. Relationship to False Arrest and Battery Claims

The Sutter defendants argue plaintifisgligence claim should be dismissed
because the alleged duties to refrain from unlaestdst or excessive force are redundant to ¢r
subsumed in their claims for false arrasd dattery. (ECF No. &-at 11-12.) The Sutter

defendants do not cite to any authority to supfios argument, and the court does not find th

11%

argument persuasivesee, e.gRobinson v. Solano Cniy278 F.3d 1007, 1016 (9th Cir. 2002)
(finding plaintiff had made suftient claims against individugblice officers and county under
California law for false arrest, false imprisonmeassault and battergegligence, and gross
negligence).

3. Negligent Hiring, Training, Supervision and Retention

The Sutter defendants also argue pl#sitallegation of neggent hiring, training,
supervision, and retention as aisdor a claim against defend&utter County is improper.
(ECF No. 6-1 at12.)

A county can be held liable for negligence of an employee under California
Government Code 8§ 815.%5ee Robinsqr278 F.3d at 1016. Section 815.2 provides “[a] public
entity is liable for injury proximately caused by act or omission of an employee of the public
entity within the scope of his employment iéthct or omission would, apart from this section

have given rise to a cause ofian against that employee or higpenal representative.” Cal.
21
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Gov't Code § 815.2(a). “Califora . . . has rejected tionellrule and imposes liability on
counties under the doctrine fspondeat superior for acscounty employees; it grants
immunity to counties onlwhere the public employee would also be immurid.”

With respect to hiring and supervisipractices, however, déne is no statutory
basis under California law faleclaring an entity direly liable for negligence See Munoz,
120 Cal. App. 4th at 1112-1dee also Sanders v. City of Freshim. 05-0469, 2006 WL
1883394, at *11 (E.D. Cal. July 7, 2006) (dismrmgsclaim against defendant police chief for

“negligent selection, training, retention, supenis and discipline” because plaintiff failed to

identify statute that imposed such dutgginhardt v. Santa Clara CnfyjNo. 05-05143, 2006 WL

3147691, at *10 (N.D. Cal. Nov. 1, 200B6AIl allegations of directiability on the part of the
entity defendants, such [as] the failure-toftrallegations, fail as a matter of law, because
plaintiff has cited no statuiemposing such liability.”).

Here, plaintiffs’ negligence claim includaBegations of both vicarious liability g
the part of Sutter County, as well as liability hiring, training, supervision and retention.
(Compl. 11 62, 63.)

To the extent plaintiffs’ negligenceat is based on defendant Sutter County’s
hiring, training, supervision, ortention of individual police ficers, the Sutter defendants’
motion is GRANTED and the claim is dismisseithwprejudice. The Sutter defendants’ motio
to dismiss plaintiffs’ negligence claims agaitts individual Sutter defendts as well as againg
Sutter County under California Government Code 8§ 815.2 is DENIED.
V. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the court orders as follows:

1. The Sutter defendants’ Motion to Dissplaintiffs’ claim against defendant
Gwinnup arising out of the search warrant on tresbaf judicial deception is GRANTED with
leave to amend.

2. The Sutter defendants’ Motion tosihiiss plaintiffs’ claims under 42 U.S.C.
8 1983 and under state law against defenddafdes, Casner, and Gwinnup is DENIED.

i
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3. The Sutter defendants’ Motion to Dissiplaintiffs’ claims for violation of the
ADA and 8§ 504 of the Rehabilitation Act is DENIED.

4. The Sutter defendants’ Man to Dismiss plaintiffsMonell claims is
DENIED.

5. The Sutter defendants’ Motion to Dissideclaratory reliesought by plaintiffg
is DENIED.

6. The Sutter defendants’ Motion tosiiiss plaintiffs’ claim under California
Civil Code 8 52.1 is DENIED.

7. The Sutter defendants’ Motion to Dissmiplaintiffs’ claim of negligent hiring,

training, supervision and retention against defah@atter County is GRANTED with prejudice.

The Sutter defendants’ Motion to Dismiss pldistiremaining negligence claim is DENIED.
8. Plaintiff shall file any amended complaint consistent with this order within
fourteen (14) days.
ITIS SO ORDERED.
DATED: January 5, 2015.

UNIT TATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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